
   
OOORRREEEGGGOOONNN   PPPUUUBBBLLLIIICCC   EEEMMMPPPLLLOOOYYYEEEEEESSS   RRREEETTTIIIRRREEEMMMEEENNNTTT   BBBOOOAAARRRDDD 

Note: If you have a disability that requires any special materials, services or assistance, call (503) 603-7575 at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

Michael Pittman, Chair   * James Dalton  * Thomas Grimsley   * Eva Kripalani   * Brenda Rocklin  * Paul R. Cleary, Executive Director 
 

Level 1 - Public 

 

  

  
FFrr iiddaayy  

FFeebbrruuaarryy  2244,,   22000066  
1111::0000  AA..MM..   &&  11::0000  PP..MM..   

  

PPEERRSS  
1111441100  SSWW  6688tt hh   PPaarrkkwwaayy  

        TTiiggaarrdd,,   OORR  

 ITEM PRESENTER 
A. Contested Case Hearings – 11:00 A.M. 
1. Contested Case Final Order for Debbie L. McIntosh KUTLER / RODEMAN 
2. Contested Case Final Order for Stephen Ross KUTLER / RODEMAN 
3. Contested Case Final Order for Annabeth Wright KUTLER / RODEMAN 
   
Lunch Break 

B.   Administration  – 1:00 P.M.  
1. January 27, 2006 Board Meeting Minutes  CLEARY 
2. Director’s Report  
 a. Forward-Looking Calendar  
 b. OIC Investment Report  
 c. Budget Report  
 d. HB2020 Update  
 e. Miscellaneous  
    
C.  Consent Action and Information Items 
1. Adoption of Contested Case Final Orders KUTLER / RODEMAN 
2. Notice of OAR 459-014-0030, PERS Designation of Beneficiary RODEMAN 
   

D.  Action and Discussion Items 
1. Adoption of OAR 459-017-0060, Reemployment of Retired Members RODEMAN 
2. 2004 Valuation Results MERCER 
3. 2005 Preliminary Earnings Crediting and Reserving ORR / RODEMAN 
4. Strunk/Eugene Implementation Plan Update STROUD 
5. 2007 Legislative Process Update DELANEY 
   
E.  Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), (h), and/or ORS 40.225 
1. Litigation Update LEGAL COUNSEL 
   

 

SL1

beanr
ADA Compliance Stamp



 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BOARD 
 

PERS Board Meeting 
MEETING 
DATE 

2-24-06 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

B.1. 
01-27-06 
Minutes 

1:00 P.M. 
January 27, 2006 
Tigard, Oregon 

 
MINUTES 

            
Board Members: Staff:    
Mike Pittman, Chair Paul R. Cleary, Director Steve Delaney Brian DeForest 
Brenda Rocklin, Vice-chair Donna Allen Brendalee Wilson Dave Tyler 
James Dalton Jane Beisell Joe Delillo Rick Howitt 
Thomas Grimsley Bob Davis David Crosley Brian Harrington 
Eva Kripalani Helen Bamford Steve Rodeman Craig Stroud 
 Jeff Marecic Dale Orr Jeanette Zang 
Others:    
Steve Manton Bill Hallmark Debra Guzman E.M. Laird 
Greg Hartman Annette Strand Jim Green Tim Kadlec 
Steve Law Bill McGee Bill Gary Hasina Squires 
Bob Andrews Linda Ely Lance Colley Danelle Romain 
Maria Keltner Dallas Weyand Karen Artico Darel Glatt 
Keith Kutler Bruce Adams Marc Feldesman Karla Alderman 
Chris Warner Michelle Deister Victor Nolan Jim Brown 
Deborah Tremblay Duane Bales Stakeholder Peg Denise Yunker 
    
 
 
Board Chair Mike Pittman called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2) (f), (h) and ORS 40.255, the Board went into executive session. 
 
The Board reconvened to open session at 1:20 P.M. 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
A.1.  BOARD MEETING MINUTES OF DECEMBER 16, 2005   

Brenda Rocklin moved and Tom Grimsley seconded to approve the minutes of the December 16, 
2005 meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 



PERS Board meeting 
01-27-06 
Page 2 of 4 
A.2.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Director Paul Cleary presented the Forward-Looking Calendar and said that the primary focus for 
the February 24 Board meeting will be preliminary decisions on earnings crediting and reserving, 
followed by the final decisions that will be made at the March 31 Board meeting.  Cleary 
provided a positive year-end report on the Oregon Investment Council (OIC) investments of the 
retirement fund and noted that the 2005 investment returns exceeded the benchmarks for all asset 
classes.  Cleary reviewed the January 2006 Budget Report that included the final report on 2003 – 
05 biennium expenditures.  Cleary reported steady progress in the HB2020 employer reporting 
program and related accounts receivable efforts as the agency begins the third year of the 
employer electronic reporting system.  Cleary provided the 2004 Purchasing Power Study 
prepared by Mercer Human Resource Consulting (Mercer).   Mercer’s Bill Hallmark introduced 
Annette Strand, as replacing PERS former principal actuary, Marcia Chapman, who left Mercer in 
September 2005.  Cleary reviewed a sample Tier One and Tier Two member 2004 annual 
statement as had recently been mailed to PERS members.  The statements reflected member 
account balances as of December 31, 2004 with the various earnings crediting reallocations that 
were based on the Strunk / Eugene court decisions implementation. 

CONSENT ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS 

B.1.  FIRST READING OF OAR 459-017-0060, REEMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED MEMBERS 

Steve Rodeman, Policy, Planning and Legislative Analysis Division (PPLAD) administrator, 
presented the first reading of revisions to the current rule regarding reemployment of retired 
members of the Chapter 238 program. 
 
B.2.  NOTICE OF 2005 LEGISLATION RULEMAKING 

Rodeman presented notice of rulemaking for a series of rules implementing PERS-related 
legislation enacted in the 2005 legislative session.  Rodeman said that staff had already begun 
rulemaking necessary to comply with changes made during the 2005 legislative session in the 
following areas: 
 

B.2.a   Final Average Salary and Salary Definition Rules 
B.2.b.  OAR 459-011-0115, Military Full Cost Purchase 
B.2.c.  OAR 459-050-0060, OSGP Designation of Beneficiary 
B.2.d.  OAR 459-070-0001, OPSRP Definitions 
B.2.e.  OAR 459-075-0010, Eligibility and Membership (Break in Service) 

 
C.1 ADOPTION OF OAR 459-005-0610, RECOVERY OF OVERPAYMENTS 

Rodeman presented the proposed rule modifications that would incorporate changes to the 
statutes that were adopted by the 2003 Oregon Legislature, and clarify agency overpayment 
recovery processes. Rodeman noted that several changes had been made to the proposed rules in 
response to public comments. 
 
It was moved by Brenda Rocklin and seconded by Eva Kripalani to adopt permanent rule 
modifications to OAR 459-005-0610, as presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 



PERS Board meeting 
01-27-06 
Page 3 of 4 
C.2.a.  ADOPTION OF EARNINGS CREDITING AND COLA RULES 

Rodeman presented the proposed permanent rule modifications that would amend the various 
earnings crediting and COLA rules in order to comply with the state of the law as articulated in 
the Strunk decision and allow the agency to move forward with earnings crediting in compliance 
with the court decision. 

It was moved by Brenda Rocklin and seconded by Eva Kripalani to repeal temporary rules 
adopted in October 2005 and adopt permanent rule modifications to OAR 459-007-0001, 459-
007-0003, 459-007-0005 and 459-007-0090 and repeal OAR 459-007-0095 and 459-013-0300, as 
presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
C.2.b.  POLICY DISCUSSION ON EARNINGS CREDITING AND RESERVE 
DEPLOYMENT 

Rodeman presented a slide presentation on reserve status and deployment policy issues that 
included a review of the statutory provisions, funding status and permitted uses of the various 
system reserves.  Rodeman also described how reserving decisions were related to the Strunk 
and Eugene cases, and outlined two alternative deployment methods. The Board discussed 
potential reserving needs and deployment criteria and asked staff to model an expanded 
spectrum of reserve deployment scenarios.   Rodeman said there would be additional analysis on 
reserve deployment options and principles that will be further discussed at the February Board 
meeting. 
 
No Board action was required. 
 
C.3.a.  STRUNK / EUGENE POLICY ISSUES 

Rodeman noted that staff wanted to provide an opportunity for additional stakeholder input on the 
One-time Variable Transfer (OVT) issue.  Rodeman also described the staff recommendation to 
use the highest benefit calculation method when doing the Strunk / Eugene benefit adjustments.  
Rodeman said that staff continues to search for options within IRS laws and PERS rules that 
would, if possible, allow recipients to repay their overpayments with lump-sum rollovers from 
IRA's or other qualified plans without tax consequences.  Rodeman requested additional 
stakeholder suggestions and recommendations on this policy issue. 
 
C.3.b.  FINAL ORDER ON STRUNK / EUGENE OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY METHOD 

Rodeman presented a final order for the Board to adopt specifying allowable repayment methods 
under the Strunk/Eugene project implementation as follows: 
 

1.) Each recipient shall repay the amounts overpaid in a single lump sum unless the recipient 
is receiving monthly payments. 

2.) Any recipient receiving a monthly payment will repay the overpaid amounts by actuarial 
reduction of their monthly payment pursuant to ORS 238.715(1)(b), unless the recipient 
elects to repay the overpaid amount in a lump sum by paying that amount within the time 
allowed in the explanation to be provided to the recipient by PERS. 

3.) If a recipient is due a payment from PERS other than a monthly payment, the amount-
overpaid shall be deducted from the recipient’s next payment and subsequent payments, if 
any, until the amount overpaid is recovered. 



PERS Board meeting 
01-27-06 
Page 4 of 4 
 
It was moved by Brenda Rocklin and seconded by Eva Kripalani to adopt the Final Order as 
presented.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
C.4.  ADMINISTRATION OF CONTESTED CASES 

Rodeman presented background and staff recommendations regarding administration of the 
contested case process. The Board discussed the various staff recommendations and asked staff 
to return with proposed rules reflecting that discussion for further consideration.  The Board 
indicated it would continue to meet in a separate session before the regular Board meetings to 
consider contested cases and allow opportunity for oral argument, but would also retain 
flexibility to review cases over the phone as necessary. 
 
C.5.  2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION

Deputy Director Steve Delaney presented the 2007 legislative concept timeline and reviewed 
stakeholder input from the January 5th legislative advisory committee meeting.    
 
Chair Pittman adjourned the meeting at 2:45 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Paul R. Cleary 
Executive Director 
 
Prepared by Donna R. Allen, Executive Assistant 



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



Reserve 2005 Balance Before Allocated Allocated Balances 2005 Earnings Reserves Combined
Crediting Reserve Contingency Capital Pres. After Reserve (Based on After 2005 Allocation/

Allocation and Reserve Reserve Allocation Pre-Allocation Crediting and 2005 Erngs
 2005 Crediting Res. Balances) Allocation Change

Contingency Reserve 0.00% $1,398.5 -$1,298.5 $0.0 $100.0 $0.0 $100.0 -92.85%
Tier One member Regular Accounts 8.00% 6,941.9 0.0 0.0 $6,941.9 $555.4 $7,497.3 8.00%
Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve N/A 311.4 252.2 0.0 $563.6 $434.0 $997.6 220.36%
Capital Preservation Reserve 0.00% 460.5 0.0 -460.5 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 -100.00%
Benefits In Force Reserve 13.86% 17,779.3 627.6 276.2 $18,683.1 $2,464.2 $21,147.3 18.94%
Tier Two member Regular Accounts 13.86% 572.4 19.9 8.8 $601.1 $79.3 $680.4 18.87%
Employer Reserves 13.86% 11,262.5 398.8 175.5 $11,836.8 $1,561.0 $13,397.8 18.96%
Lump-sum Accounts 12.82% 6,428.9 0.0 0.0 $6,428.9 $824.2 $7,253.1 12.82%

   Total $45,155.4 $0.0 $0.0 $45,155.4 $5,918.1 $51,073.5 13.11%

(All dollar amounts in millions)

Scenario 1
2005  Earnings Crediting and Reserve Allocation

Targeted Proportional Allocation of Contingency and Cap. Pres. Reserves
Contingency Reserve: Retain $100 million; Capital Preservation Reserve Retain $0.0; No 2005 Earnings

2005 Estimated Reserve Balances
After Est. 2005 Crediting and Targeted Allocation of Contingency and Capital Preservation Reserves

Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve
1.95%

Tier One member Regular Accounts
14.68%

Contingency Reserve
0.20%

Capital Preservation Reserve
0.00%

Benefits In Force Reserve
41.41%

Tier Two member Regular Accounts
1.33%

Employer Reserves
26.23%

Lump-sum Accounts
14.20%

SL1



Reserve 2005 Balance Before Allocated Allocated Balances 2005 Earnings Reserves Combined
Crediting Reserve Contingency Capital Pres. After Reserve (Based on After 2005 Allocation/

Allocation and Reserve Reserve Allocation Pre-Allocation Crediting and 2005 Erngs
 2005 Crediting Res. Balances) Allocation Change

Contingency Reserve 0.00% $1,398.5 -$1,198.5 $0.0 $200.0 $0.0 $200.0 -85.70%
Tier One member Regular Accounts 8.00% 6,941.9 0.0 0.0 $6,941.9 $555.4 $7,497.3 8.00%
Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve N/A 311.4 232.8 0.0 $544.2 $434.0 $978.2 214.13%
Capital Preservation Reserve 0.00% 460.5 0.0 -460.5 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 -100.00%
Benefits In Force Reserve 13.86% 17,779.3 579.3 276.2 $18,634.8 $2,464.2 $21,099.0 18.67%
Tier Two member Regular Accounts 13.86% 572.4 18.4 8.8 $599.6 $79.3 $678.9 18.61%
Employer Reserves 13.86% 11,262.5 368.0 175.5 $11,806.0 $1,561.0 $13,367.0 18.69%
Lump-sum Accounts 12.82% 6,428.9 0.0 0.0 $6,428.9 $824.2 $7,253.1 12.82%

   Total $45,155.4 $0.0 $0.0 $45,155.4 $5,918.1 $51,073.5 13.11%

(All dollar amounts in millions)

2005  Earnings Crediting and Reserve Allocation
Scenario 2

Targeted Proportional Allocation of Contingency and Cap. Pres. Reserves
Contingency Reserve: Retain $200 million; Capital Preservation Reserve Retain $0.0; No 2005 Earnings

2005 Estimated Reserve Balances
After Est. 2005 Crediting and Targeted Allocation of Contingency and Capital Preservation Reserves

Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve
1.92%

Tier One member Regular Accounts
14.68%

Contingency Reserve
0.39%

Capital Preservation Reserve
0.00%

Benefits In Force Reserve
41.31%

Tier Two member Regular Accounts
1.33%

Employer Reserves
26.17%

Lump-sum Accounts
14.20%

SL1



Reserve 2005 Balance Before Allocated Allocated Balances 2005 Earnings Reserves Combined
Crediting Reserve Contingency Capital Pres. After Reserve (Based on After 2005 Allocation/

Allocation and Reserve Reserve Allocation Pre-Allocation Crediting and 2005 Erngs
 2005 Crediting Res. Balances) Allocation Change

Contingency Reserve 0.00% $1,398.5 -$898.5 $0.0 $500.0 $0.0 $500.0 -64.25%
Tier One member Regular Accounts 8.00% 6,941.9 0.0 0.0 $6,941.9 $555.4 $7,497.3 8.00%
Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve N/A 311.4 174.5 0.0 $485.9 $434.0 $919.9 195.41%
Capital Preservation Reserve 0.00% 460.5 0.0 -460.5 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 -100.00%
Benefits In Force Reserve 13.86% 17,779.3 434.3 276.2 $18,489.8 $2,464.2 $20,954.0 17.86%
Tier Two member Regular Accounts 13.86% 572.4 13.8 8.8 $595.0 $79.3 $674.3 17.81%
Employer Reserves 13.86% 11,262.5 275.9 175.5 $11,713.9 $1,561.0 $13,274.9 17.87%
Lump-sum Accounts 12.82% 6,428.9 0.0 0.0 $6,428.9 $824.2 $7,253.1 12.82%

   Total $45,155.4 $0.0 $0.0 $45,155.4 $5,918.1 $51,073.5 13.11%

(All dollar amounts in millions)

Scenario 3
2005  Earnings Crediting and Reserve Allocation

Targeted Proportional Allocation of Contingency and Cap. Pres. Reserves
Contingency Reserve: Retain $500 million; Capital Preservation Reserve Retain $0.0; No 2005 Earnings

2005 Estimated Reserve Balances
After Est. 2005 Crediting and Targeted Allocation of Contingency and Capital Preservation Reserves

Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve
1.80%

Tier One member Regular Accounts
14.68%

Contingency Reserve
0.98%

Capital Preservation Reserve
0.00%

Benefits In Force Reserve
41.03%

Tier Two member Regular Accounts
1.32%

Employer Reserves
25.99%

Lump-sum Accounts
14.20%

SL1



Reserve 2005 Balance Before Allocated Allocated Balances 2005 Earnings Reserves Combined
Crediting Reserve Contingency Capital Pres. After Reserve (Based on After 2005 Allocation/

Allocation and Reserve Reserve Allocation Pre-Allocation Crediting and 2005 Erngs
 2005 Crediting Res. Balances) Allocation Change

Contingency Reserve 0.00% $1,398.5 $0.0 $0.0 $1,398.5 $0.0 $1,398.5 0.00%
Tier One member Regular Accounts 8.00% 6,941.9 0.0 0.0 $6,941.9 $555.4 $7,497.3 8.00%
Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve N/A 311.4 0.0 0.0 $311.4 $434.0 $745.4 139.37%
Capital Preservation Reserve 0.00% 460.5 0.0 0.0 $460.5 $0.0 $460.5 0.00%
Benefits In Force Reserve 13.86% 17,779.3 0.0 0.0 $17,779.3 $2,464.0 $20,243.3 13.86%
Tier Two member Regular Accounts 13.86% 572.4 0.0 0.0 $572.4 $79.4 $651.8 13.86%
Employer Reserves 13.86% 11,262.5 0.0 0.0 $11,262.5 $1,561.1 $12,823.6 13.86%
Lump-sum Accounts 12.82% 6,428.9 0.0 0.0 $6,428.9 $824.2 $7,253.1 12.82%

   Total $45,155.4 $0.0 $0.0 $45,155.4 $5,918.1 $51,073.5 13.11%

(All dollar amounts in millions)

Scenario 4
2005  Earnings Crediting and Reserve Allocation
Retention of Total Contingency and Cap. Pres. Reserves

No 2005 Earnings to Contingency or Capital Preservation Reserves

2005 Estimated Reserve Balances
After Est. 2005 Crediting (No allocation from Contingency and Capital Preservation Res.)

Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve
1.46%

Tier One member Regular Accounts
14.68%

Contingency Reserve
2.74%

Capital Preservation Reserve
0.90%

Benefits In Force Reserve
39.64%

Tier Two member Regular Accounts
1.28%

Employer Reserves
25.11%

Lump-sum Accounts
14.20%

SL1



Reserve 2005 Balance Before Allocated Allocated Balances 2005 Earnings Reserves Combined
Crediting Reserve Contingency Capital Pres. After Reserve (Based on After 2005 Allocation/

Allocation and Reserve Reserve Allocation Pre-Allocation Crediting and 2005 Erngs
 2005 Crediting Res. Balances) Allocation Change

Contingency Reserve 27.46% $1,398.5 $0.0 $0.0 $1,398.5 $384.0 $1,782.5 27.46%
Tier One member Regular Accounts 8.00% 6,941.9 0.0 0.0 $6,941.9 $555.4 $7,497.3 8.00%
Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve N/A 311.4 0.0 0.0 $311.4 $359.4 $670.8 115.41%
Capital Preservation Reserve 67.56% 460.5 0.0 0.0 $460.5 $311.1 $771.6 67.56%
Benefits In Force Reserve 11.76% 17,779.3 0.0 0.0 $17,779.3 $2,091.7 $19,871.0 11.76%
Tier Two member Regular Accounts 11.76% 572.4 0.0 0.0 $572.4 $67.3 $639.7 11.76%
Employer Reserves 11.76% 11,262.5 0.0 0.0 $11,262.5 $1,325.0 $12,587.5 11.76%
Lump-sum Accounts 12.82% 6,428.9 0.0 0.0 $6,428.9 $824.2 $7,253.1 12.82%

   Total $45,155.4 $0.0 $0.0 $45,155.4 $5,918.1 $51,073.5 13.11%

(All dollar amounts in millions)

Scenario 5
2005  Earnings Crediting and Reserve Allocation
Retention of Total Contingency and Cap. Pres. Reserves

7.5% of 2005 Earnings to Contingency and Capital Preservation Reserves

2005 Estimated Reserve Balances
After Est. 2005 Crediting (No allocation from Contingency and Capital Preservation Res.)

Tier One Rate Guarantee Reserve
1.31%

Tier One member Regular Accounts
14.68%

Contingency Reserve
3.49%

Capital Preservation Reserve
1.51%

Benefits In Force Reserve
38.91%

Tier Two member Regular Accounts
1.25%

Employer Reserves
24.65%

Lump-sum Accounts
14.20%

SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1



SL1


	2-24 Board Packet.pdf
	AGENDA
	MINUTES
	C.1.
	C.2.
	D.1.
	D.2.
	D.3.
	D.4.
	D.5.




